
V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

#16/23, APN Building, 2"' floor, 
TTK Road 1" Cross Street, Alwarpet, 
Chenna i 600 018, TN, India 

To the members of SEI Tejas Private Limited 

Report on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

p: +91444287 0378 
e: contact@vkan.co 

We have audited the accompanying standalone lnd AS financial statements of SEl Tejas Private 
Limited ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 3], 2023, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, including a 
summaiy of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

ln our opinion and to the best of our infom1ation and according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified opinion section of our report, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by tne Companies Act, 
20 13 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confonnity with the lndian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Jndian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and oilier accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3 1, 2023 , and profit, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Our report is qualified in respect of the matters stated below: 

With respect to certain liabilities aggregating to R 7,877.37 thousand lying outstanding as at March 
31 , 2023 under other current liabilities, sufficient appropriate audit evidence is not available to 
corroborate the management's assessment of such obligations. Moreover, during the year, based on the 
management's assessment and conclusion, liabilities aggregating to lNR 24,384.99 thousand have been 
written back and taken as income which is not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence. 
Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might be necessa1y to the 
outstanding liabilities and are also unable to comment on the appropriateness of the accounting 
adjustments relating to liabilities written back during the year along with the con-esponding impact 
arising out of both the matters on income tax, net loss and shareholders' funds. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) oftbe Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India togeth r with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone Tnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and tne Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on tne standalone Ind AS 
financial statements. 
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Material uncertainty relating to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 39 of the standalone lnd AS financial statements annexed to this report which 
indicates that the net worth of the Company has been fully eroded as at 31 st March 2023 thereby raising 
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue in operation for the foreseeable future . 
Consequently, the standalone Jnd AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a 
liquidation basis wherein assets have been re-measured at the values they are expected to realise and 
liabilities have been remeasured at the values they are expected to settle. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section and Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 
section of our report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our repo1t. 

Sr. Key Audit Matter 
No. 
1 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of revenues 
and other related balances in view of 
adoption of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers" 

The application of the revenue accounting 
standard involves certain key judgements 
relating to identification of distinct 
pe1formance obligations, dete1mination of 
transaction price of the appropriateness of the 
basis used to measure revenue recognized over 
a period. Further, it comprises the point in time 
when transfer of control has occurred 
regarding sale of solar water pumps (supply­
only and supply-and-installation), sale of solar 
components, and assessmg the degree of 
completion of service contracts which are 
accounted for over time. Recognition of the 
Company's revenue is complex due to several 
types of customer contracts utilized, including 
sale of solar water pumps and service income 
related aspects. Refer Note 3(c) of the 
standalone lnd AS financial statements. 

Auditor's Response 

Our procedures included, among others, 
obtaining an understanding of contract 
execution processes and relevant controls 
relating to the accounting for customer 
contracts. We tested the relevant internal 
controls used to ensure the completeness, 
accuracy and timing of revenue recognized, 
including controls over the degree of 
completion of service contracts at year-end. 

We read a sample of both sales and service 
contracts to assess whether the method for 
recognition of revenue was relevant and 
consistent with Tnd AS 115 and has been 
applied consistently. We focused on contract 
classification, allocation of income and cost 
to individual perfonnance obligations and 
timing of transfer of control. Where a contract 
contained multiple elements, we considered 
Management's judgements as to whether they 
comprised performance obligations that 
should be accounted for separately, and in 
such cases, challenged the judgements made 
m the allocation of consideration to each 
performance obligation. 

We evaluated and challenged the significant 
judgements and estimates made by 
Management m applying the Company' s 
accounting policy to a sample of specific 
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2 Related party transactions - Accuracy and 
completeness of related party transactions 
and disclosures thereof (as described in note 
33 to the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements) 

We identified the measurement, completeness, 
presentation and disclosure of related party 
transactions as a key audit matter due to the 
high volume and complexity of business 
transactions with related parties. 

contracts and separable performance 
obligations of contracts, and we obtained 
evidence to support them, including details of 
contractual agreements, delivery records and 
cash recejpts. For the contracts selected, we 
inspected original signed contracts and 
reconciled the revenue recognized to the 
underlying accounting records. 
We obtained an understanding of the process 
and tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of key controls that 
management has established to identify, 
account for and disclose related party 
transactions. We also obtained an updated list 
of all related parties to the Company and 
reviewed the general ledger against this list to 
ensure completeness of transactions. We read 
contracts and agreements with related parties 
to understand the nature of the transactions. 
We agreed the amounts disclosed to 
underlying documentation and rev1ewmg 
relevant agreements, on a sample basis, as 
part of our evaluation of the disclosure. We 
carried out an understanding of the 
Company's methodology of determination of 
arms-length price. We made enquiries of 
management in order to identify if any related 
party transactions outside the normal course 
of business have taken place. 
We evaluated the completeness of the 
disclosures through review of statutory 
information, books and records and other 
documents obtained during the course of our 
audit. 

Information Other than the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 

TI1e Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other infonnation 
obtained at the date of this auditor's report is information included in the Director's report but does not 
include the standalone fnd AS fmancial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

In connection with our audit of'the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other infmmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtamed during tbe course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
infom1ation, we are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section 
above, we were unable obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect to certain liabilities 
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aggregating to INR 7,877.37 thousand lying outstanding as at March 31, 2023 under other current 
liabilities to corroborate the management's assessment of such obligations. Moreover, during the year, 
based on the management's assessment and conclusion, liabilities aggregating to INR 24,384.99 
thousand have been written back and taken as income which is not supported by sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence. 

Hence, we are unable to detem1ine whether any adjustments might be necessary to such amounts and 
the corresponding impact on income tax, net income and shareholders' funds . Accordingly, we are 
unable to conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with respect to this 
matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134( ) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financ ial perfo1mance, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
and accounting principles generally accepted in Tndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecti11g frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; makingjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
piudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Ow- objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone Ind AS fmancial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticisrn throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedw-es responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resu lting from e1Tor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 



V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

• Obtain an understancling of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system i.11 place and the operati.11g effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor' s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Tnd AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, strncture and content of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements , includjng the clisclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves faiT presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our aud it. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of tl1e Ind AS financial statements of the cmTent period and are 
therefore the key aucli t mattets. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

l. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we rep01t that: 
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a) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section 

above, obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of our lrnowledge and 

belief were necessmy for the purposes of our audit. 

b) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section above, in our opinion, 

proper books of account as required by law have been kept by lhe Company so far as it appears 

from our ex.amination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss includi.ng Other Comprehensive lncome, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section above, in our opinion, 

the aforesaid standalone Tnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) The matter described in the Material unce1tainty related to Going Concern section above, in our 

opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors for the year c:nded 

March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on March 31 , 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section I 64 (2) of the Act. 

g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 

are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above. 

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Rep01i i.n 

"Annex:ure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company ' s internal financial controls over fina ncial repotting. 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Rep01t in accordance with the 

requi.rements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private 

company, section 197 of the Act reiated to the managerial remuneration is not applicable. 

j) With resped to the other matters to be inc luded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

infonnation and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

note 32 of its standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

11. The Company did not have any long-teril1 contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
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1v. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the Like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or othe1wise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

c) Based on such audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circmnstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

v1. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
faci lity is applicable to the Company with effect from April I, 2023, and accordingly, 
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government of h1dia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 

give in the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable. 

For V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Film Registration No O I 4226S 

Kaushik Venkatrnman 
Partner 
Membership No. 222070 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 23 May 2023 
U1JlN: 23222070BGQHNAI 573 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph I (g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to the Members of SEI Tejas Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SEI Tejas Private Limited 
("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting critc1ia established by the Company conside1ing 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('TCA T'). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financ ial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and enors, the accw-acy and completeness of the accmmting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Om responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted ow- audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance ote") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013 , to the extent applicable to an audit of internal fu1ancial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financi al reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Om audit of internal 
financi al controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material wealmess exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financia l statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company' s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurate ly and fai rl y reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and djrectors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations oflntcrnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial repo1ting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the 
Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
repmting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31 , 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting crite1ia established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants 
ofTndia. 

For V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No 014226S 

Ka~enkatrrunan 
Partner 
Membership No. 222070 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 23 May 2023 
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Annexure B referred to in Paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SEI Tejas 
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

In tenus of the infonuation and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examjned by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property of plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and 
equipment under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period 
of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets . ln accordance with this program, certain property, 
plant and equipment were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property . Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company . 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory were noticed. 

(i ii) 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned with working capital Limits by banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of cunent assets dw-iug any point of time of the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a)The Company has provided loans to its ultimate holding company. The details of the same 
are given below: 

Particulars Loans (f '000) 

ArrQ'fegate amount during the year: 
-Subsidiaries -
- Others -
Balance outstanding as at balance 
sheet date: 
-Subsidiaries -
- Others 20,667.10 
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(b) The terms and conditions of all loans provided during the year are not, prirna facie, 
prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans outstanding as at the year, the schedule of repayment of principal 
and the payment of the interest has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are unable 
to comment as to whether the repayments of principal and interest are regular. 

( d) In tbe absence of stipulated schedule ofrepayment of principal and payment of interest, 
we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more 
than 90 days. 

(e) The Company has not granted loans which had fallen due during the year. Further, no 
fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans in nature of loan. 

(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details below: 

(l '000) 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate of loans/advances Ill 

nature of loan 
- Repayable on demand (A) 20,667.10 - 20,667.10 
- Agreement does not specify any 
terms or period of repayment (B) - - -

Total (A+B) 20,667.10 - 20,667.10 
Percentage of 1 oans/ advances Ill 

100% 
nature of loan to the total loans 

(iv) ln our op101on, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantees and security, as applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount whjcb bas been 
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section 
( I) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/business activity. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii)(a) Tn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed 
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund , employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company. Further, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues 
refetTed in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities 
on account of any dispute except for the following: 



V KAN & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Name of Nature of 
the dues 
statute 

Income Income Tax 
tax 
Act,1961 

Income Income Tax 
tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Income Tax 
tax 
Act, 1961 

Gross 
Amount 
(t) 

9,569.81 

721.81 

490.58 

(t '000 

Amount Period to Forum where 
paid which the dispute is 

under amount pending 

Protest (t) relates 

Nil AY 2015-16 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

Nil AY 2017-18 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

Ni l AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Income Tax 

(v iii) According to the information and exp lanations given to us, no transactions were 
sunendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of 
accounts. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us , the Company bas not defaulted 
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation 
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, 
we report that the Company has not been declared a wiUful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or other lend er. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , there was 
no term loan applied or received during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financia l statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short 
term basis have not been uti li zed for long term purposes. 

(e) According to the infom1ation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventmes or associates. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. 

(x) (a) The Company bas not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, repo1iing under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible 



V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit. 

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the 
period covered by our audit. 

(c) According lo the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required lo 
establish a whistle blower mechanism as per section 177 read with rule 7 of the Companies 
(Meetings of board and its powers) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, repo1ting under clause 3(vi) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, ail transactions 
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Tndian Accounting Standard (Tnd AS) 24, 
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 20 15 as 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act]. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have 
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal 
audit system. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company bas not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, 
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year but has 
incuned cash losses amounting to Rs. 6,131.66 thousand in the current financial year. 

(x viii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the standalone :financial statements, our knowledge of the plans 
of the Board of Directors and management, we are unable to comment on the going concern 
ability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report. 

(xx) Accordjng to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not folfill the 
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 



V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause 
under this report. 

For V KAN & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 0014226S 

Kaushik Venkatraman 
Pa1tner 
Membership No.: 222070 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 23 May 2023 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
CIN: U40101TN2013FTC094224 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Other financia l assets 
(c) Deferred Tax Asset (net) 

( d) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
(a) lnventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 
(i i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(ii i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

( c) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LlABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital 
(b) Other Equity 

(i) Reserves and Surplus 

Total Equity 

LlABILITIES 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(b) Provisions 
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
( ii) Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LlABILITIES 

Notes forming part of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

This is the Balance sheet referred to in our report 

For V KA N & Associates 

u hik Venkatraman 
Partner 
Membership No: 222070 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Notes 

4 

5 
6 
7 

9 
10 

11 
12 
13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
19 

20 
21 

22 
23 

1 -43 

As at 
31 March 2023 

62.77 

31 ,711 .16 

7,669 .23 
39,443.16 

7,363 .29 
889.30 

4,794.54 
20,667 .11 

7,568 .27 
2,799 .05 

44,081.56 
83,524.72 

72,152 .50 

(2,63 , 166 28) 

(1,91,013.78) 

12,914.40 
5,754 .93 

18,669.33 

1,33,130 .65 

25,170 .96 
16,260 .40 
75,561.88 

5,745.28 

2,55,869. 17 

83,524.72 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,815 .80 

35,320.90 

5,294.11 
42,430.81 

14,848.98 

9,427 .46 
6 ,306.72 
3,661.90 

20,667 .11 
24,092 .80 
25 ,970.83 

1,04,975.80 
1,47,406.61 

72,152.50 

(2,83,393.29) 

(2, 11,240.79) 

509.68 
31,748.59 
11 ,438 .28 
43,696.55 

1,57,549.12 

48,754.56 
37,433 .00 
65,418 .58 

5,795 .59 

3,14,950.85 

1,47,406.61 

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
SEI Tejas Priv 

Thirunavu rasu Dakshioamoorthy 
Director 
DLN : 0734566 7 
Place . Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Venkatesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN : 08245718 
Place · Chenna i 
Date : 23 May 2023 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
CIN: U40l01 TN2013FTC094224 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts are in JNR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Revenue from operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Consumption of material, erection and engineering expenses 
Employee benefit expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 
ProfiU(Loss) before tax 
Tax Expense: 

Current Year 
ProfiU(Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations, net of tax 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share ( of Rs. 10 each) 
Basic and Diluted earnings per share 

Notes forming part of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report 

For V K A N & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
F' Registr ion No: 014226S 

Partner 
Membership No: 222070 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Notes 

24 
25 

26 
27 
28 
4 

29 

30 

31 

1 - 43 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

7,521.59 
78,774.85 
86,296.43 

1,092.31 
4,631.82 

10,214.62 
229.54 

50,001.53 
66,169.82 
20,126.62 

20,126.62 

100.39 

20,227.01 

20,227.01 

2.80 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

59,459.84 
20,538.73 
79,998.57 

42,664.59 
4,827.79 

11,852.31 
554.99 

72,636.22 
1,32,535.90 
(52,537.33) 

(11,147.33) 
(41,390.00) 

(242.93) 

(41,632.93) 

(41,632.93) 

(5.77) 

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
SEI Tejas Private Limited 

~ 
Thirunavukkarasu Dakshinamoorthy 
Director 
DIN: 07345667 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Venkatesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN: 08245718 
Place: Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
CIN: U40101 TN2013ITC094224 
Cash Flow Statement fo r the year ended Man:h 31, 2023 
(A ll amounts are in INR thou.sands unless otherwise stated) 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 
Interest income on fixed deposits/loans 
Provision for Warranty 
Provision for doubtful debts and write off 
Provision for GST ITC Credit 
Advances written off 
Other receivables written off 
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant& Equipment 
Liabi lities no longer required written back 
Interest Expense 
Provision for Doubtful Assets 
Obsolete inventory written off 
Others 
Operating loss before working capital changes 
Adjusbnents for (increase) / decrease in operating assets : 
Adjusbnents for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities : 
Inventories 
Trade Receivables 
Other Financial Assets 
Other Current Assets 
Trade Payables 
Other Non Current Liabilities 
Other Liabilities and Provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Net Income Tax (paid) /refund received 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Acti-vities 

Bank deposits matured/ (deposited) during the year 
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Inter corporate loans (given)/ repaid 
Interest income received 
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
Borrowings 
Interest paid during the year 
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 
Cash a nd Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash Eq uivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 
Note: 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 J 1 March 2022 

20,126.62 (52,537.33) 

229.54 554.99 
(3 ,914.53) (3 ,46 1.07) 

130.50 
62,307.33 

19,994.17 
8.78 

13,347.17 
(35.96) 

(69,560.58) (16,924.31) 
I0,214.62 11 ,852.31 
1,406.50 
8,360.89 2,132.60 

538.49 
168,44 4,602,29 

6,488.09 21,821.92 
(I 1,283 .01) 15,794.46 
23,684.88 10,493 .25 

(604.00) 12,599.38 
24,804.40 (15,016.72) 
(5,683.36) (4,999.45) 

(I 8,784.10) (6,716 28) 
18,791.34 38,578.85 

650.74 
18,791.34 39,229.60 

(1 ,132.65) 3.158.51 
1,559.44 

(14,862.98) 
363 .90 I 389.67 
790,69 (10,314.80) 

(24,928.15) (24,525.46) 
(7130) (628.68) 

(24,999,45) (25,154,14) 

(5,417.42) 3,760.65 
6,306.72 2,546.06 

889.30 6,306.72 

1. The cash flow statement is prepared under "Indirect method" as set out in IND AS 7 Statements of Cash Flows notified in Section 133 of the Companies , 

2. Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 
Less: Restricted bank balances not to be considered as part of cash and 
cash eauivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end orthe year 

Notes forming part of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

This is the Statement of cash flows referred to in our report 

Membership No: 222070 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

889.30 

889.30 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
SEI Tej Pri 

Thirunavukkarasu Dakshinamoorthy 
Director 
DIN : 07345667 
Place : Chennai 
Date . 23 May 2023 

6,306.72 

6,306,72 

Venka tesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN: 08245718 
Place : Chennai 
Dute 23 May 2023 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
CIN: U40101TN2013FTC094224 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(A ll amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equitv Share Caoital (also refer Note 15) 
Particulars Number 
Equity shares INR I O each issued, 72, 15,250 
subscribed and paid 
Issue of equity shares -
As at 31 March 2022 72,15,250 
Issue of equity shares -
As at 31 March 2023 72,15,250 

B 0th E ·t er ,QUICY 

Particulars Retained Earnings 

As at 31 March 2021 (2,42,472.74) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year (41,390.00) 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year (242.93' 
As at 31 March 2022 (2,84, 105.67) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year 20,126.62 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year 100.39 
As at 31 March 2023 (2,63,878.66) 

Notes forming part of the Ind AS Financial statements 

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report 

For V K A N & Associates 

Partner 
Membership No: 222070 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Amount in Rs 
72,152.50 

-
72,152.50 

-
72,152.50 

Other Total equity 
comprehensive attributable to equity 

income holders 
712.37 (2,41,760.37) 

- (41 ,390.00' 

- (242.93) 
712.37 (2,83,393.30) 

- 20,126.62 

- 100.39 
712.37 (2,63,166.29) 

I - 43 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
SEI Tejas Private Limited 

Thirunavukkarasu Dakshinamoorthy 
Director 
DIN: 07345667 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Venkatesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN: 08245718 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

1 Background 
SEI Tejas Private Limited ('the Company') is a private company domiciled and headquartered in India and was incorporated on 19 
December 20 I 3 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of rendering design, engineering, installation 
and maintenance of solar water pumps. 

2 Basis of preparation 
a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on 
the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting period as 
explained in the accounting policies below , the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified). The lnd AS are 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Details of the Company's significant 
accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Functional and presentation currency 
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs .) 
except for share data or as stated otherwise. 

c. Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items: 
a) Net defined benefit liability - Present value of defined benefit obligations 
b) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities - Fair value 

d. Use of estimates 
ln preparing these financial statements, Management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses . Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 

Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment are reviewed on an on-going 
basis and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

e. Measurement of fair values 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for 
measurement and /or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have some 
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level l, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the 
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which 
are described as follows: 

- Level l inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date; 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

~iz~::r;i~;;~t~r~:~::::~r~:~l:e~;::s ~:r~:;~cs::tor liability. v~ ~ 
~ 

(t::j:,;C'y' 
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SEI Tejas Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 Significant accounting policies 

a Foreign currency transactions 
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee . 

Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rate in 
effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss . 

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in 
which the transaction is settled. Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant 
functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. 

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses). 

b Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost includes all taxes and duties, but excludes 
duties and taxes that are subsequently recoverable from tax authorities . 

The methods of determining cost of various categories of inventories are as follows : 
Descri tion Methods of determinin cost 

Raw Materials First-In-First-Out (FIFO) 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion and sale. Obsolete, slow moving and defective 
inventories are identified from time to time and, where necessary, a provision is made for such inventories. 

c Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, net of returns 
and discounts to customers. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 
consideration is probable. Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the services are rendered and the Performance 
Obligations are discharged. However, where the ultimate collection of revenue lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is 
postponed. 

d Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties and taxes and 
other incidental expenses related to the acquisition, but exclude duties and taxes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities. 
Capital work in progress includes the cost of assets that are not ready for its intended use and cost of assets not put to use before the 
balance sheet date . Dismantling costs and costs of removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is required to be included 
in the cost of property, plant and equipment where ever applicable and Cost of major inspections is recognized in the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment as a replacement, if recognition criteria are satisfied and any remaining carrying amount of the cost of 
previous inspection is derecognized. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in profit or loss . 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on the straight line method over the useful lives of assets as assessed by the management of the Company. The 
management estimates the useful lives tangible fixed assets as follow: 

Description Useful lives 
Computers 3 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Office equipments 5 years 
Furnitures and fixtures 10 years 

e Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at 
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

f Employee benefits 

i. Short-term employee benefits: Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified 
as short-term employee benefits . These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term 
employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by 
employees. 

ii. Post employment benefits: 

Defined contribution plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and 
has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to 
Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an 
expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year in which the employee renders the related service. 

Defined benefit plans 
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees. The Plan provides payment 
to vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee 's salary and the 
tenure of employment with the Company. The Company provides for gratuity based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. The 
actuarial valuation has been carried out using ' Projected Unit Method' by an independent actuary. 

Compensated absences 
Provision for compensated absences is made by the Company as at the balance sheet date of the un-availed leave standing to the credit of 
employees in accordance with the service rules of the Company. Liabilities related to the compensated absences are determined by 
actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of other comprehensive_ income in the period in which they occur. The 
retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for 
unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets . 

g Leases 
The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset (ii) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has applied the exemption of not to recognize Right to Use assets and 
liabilities for leases with less than 12 months oflease term on the date of initial application a a practical expediency. For these short term 
and low value leases , the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the 
lease. 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

h Income taxes 
Income tax expense comprise current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax law) and 
deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting that tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the 
period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date . Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there 
is a reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss 
under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets . Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the 
case may be) to be realized. Current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent to which the Company has a legally 
enforceable right to set off and they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws . 

Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") paid in accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of 
adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the company would pay normal 
income tax after tax holiday period and accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future 
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent there is no convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of resources 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources . Where there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent 
assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

Provision for onerous contracts i.e. contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on reliable estimate of such obligation. 

Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year, 
adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the 
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

k Cash flow statements 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with 
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of activities of the company and the normal time between rendering of services and their realisation in cash or 
cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and 
liabilities as current and non-current. 
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m Financial instruments: 
Initial recognition 
The Company recogniz.es financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
All financial assets and liabilities are recogniz.ed at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially 
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and 
sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date . 

Subsequent measurement 
i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The 
Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes 
in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. 

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset, which is not classified in any of the above categories, is subsequently fair valued through profit or loss . 

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recogniz.es loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair 
valued through profit or loss . Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL, as applicable, as the case may 
be. The amount of ECLs (or reversals, if any) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 
required to be recogniz.ed is recogniz.ed as an impairment gain or loss in the profit or loss . 

v) Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortiz.ed cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration 
recogniz.ed in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss . For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

De recognition of financial instruments 
The company derecogniz.es a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecogniz.ed from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

n New accounting standards yet to be adopted by the Company 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the following new amendments to Ind AS which the Company has not applied as they 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April I, 2023 

Amendment to Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Instruments" 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies.Accounting policy information is material if, together with other information can reasonably be expected to influence decisionsof 
primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and deco=issioning obligations. The 
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 oflnd AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no 
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is 
evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates . The definition of a change in 
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are ~ 
" mnn ... t,::, r, , ,s,....,n,,nt"' in t"; .-. .-.n r• i,::,J L- t 'J t P m P ntc- th .. t ,::,rp, ., ,,hi.c>r-t t n m,:,, ,ic- ,,rP m ,,.n t ,,.,. ,.. ... rt,-,, i ntu" C ,.,t;t; ... c- ,, .. .,, ,...., .,,,.<- ,,r.,, m <>, nJ.t ..,,.. , -, ; r,,. ;,,,::- •snrl ;.,...,.,.tc- t o 

- .. - , ~ ?·· ~~... ~ 

~ 
t 0

• :~'.::s.~;:.~ · 
~~, ··----.... t··/" . -7 '· 

( fi ( Chonj. a i <z_ 
~ -'!! 

\ t::: 
\;) . ........__ .. ~ 

-· .. ,:{' 



SEI Tejas Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

llJUU'-'UUJ U.U.lVUJ..11..3 LU lllJ«ll\,IIUl ,lU&I.WllJVUL,l UJ.UI. al\,, .:)UUJ'-''-'I. LU llJ .... U.:)Ull,,,;I.U .... UL ,.Ul\,,\,,JLUIULJ , l..it.ll.1 1.1 .... ,:) u.:,'-' ll.1\.,U.:)Ul .... 1..U'-'UL "-''-'lilll~U'-"' .::, U.U.U ll.1pu1..::, LV 

develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves 
measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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N 4 P ote - roperty, PI ant an dE ,quipment 

Description Computers Vehicles 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,145.16 2,996.99 
Additions 9.15 -
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,154.31 2,996.99 
Additions - -
Deletions - 2,889.99 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,154.31 107.00 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 980.71 923.05 
Depreciation for the year 156.23 371.30 
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,136.94 1,294.35 
Depreciation for the year 13 .94 191.49 
Disposals - 1,438.18 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,150.88 47.66 

Net block 
As at 31 March 2023 3.43 59.34 
As at 31 March 2022 17.37 l 702.64 

Office equipment 
Furniture & 

Total 
Fixtures 

72.12 ll8.38 4,332.66 
- - 9.15 
- - -

72.12 ll8.38 4,341.80 
- - -

53 .13 118.38 3,061.50 
18.99 - 1,280.30 

39.28 27.98 1,971.02 
15.63 11.83 554.99 

- - -
54.91 39.81 2,526.01 
12.27 11.84 229.54 
48.18 51.65 1,538.01 
19.00 0.00 1,217.54 

- - 62.76 
17.22 78.57 1.815.80 
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5 Other Financial Assets - Non-Current 
Restricted Bank Balances @ 
Security Deposits 
Total 
@ Marked as lien against bank guarantees 

6 Deferred Tax Assets (net) 

Deferred tax liability 
Excess of amortisation on fixed assets under income tax law over amortisation 

provided in the books 
Deferred tax assets* 
Employee benefit obligations 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

As at 
31 March 2023 

31,711.16 

31 711.16 

80.28 

80.28 

As at 
31 March 2022 

34,620.90 
700.00 

35,320.90 

80.28 

80.28 

* Deferred tax assets have been recognized only to the extent of deferred tax liability as there is no reasonable certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which all deferred tax assets can be reversed. 

7 Other non-current assets 
Taxes receivable 
(Net of provision for Tax current year: Nil (31 March 2022: Nil)) 

Total 

8 Inventories 
Raw materials and components 
Total 

9 Trade Receivables 
Unsecured 

Considered good (also refer note 33) 
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 

Less : Loss Allowance (refer note 37) 
Total 
Agiug of trade receivables(J l/03/2023): 

Undis puted Trade R eceivables 

Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Total 

Disputed Trade R eceivables 

Credit impaired 
Total 

Aging of trade receivables(31/03/2022): 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Total 

Disputed Trade Receivables 

Credit im aired 
Total 

Less 
than 6 
mouths 

-
-
-

Less 
than 6 

months 
-

-

Less 
than 6 

mouths 
266.07 

-
266.07 

Less 
than 6 

months 

6 
mouths 
- 1 vear 

5.00 
-

5.00 

6 
mouths 
-1 vear 

-
-

6 
mouths 
- 1 vear 

10.50 
19,095 .28 
19,105.78 

6 
mouths 
- I vear 

1-2 
years 

7,358.29 
16.215.01 
23,573.30 

1-2 
years 

1-2 
years 

7.360.59 
32.465 .03 
39,825.62 

1-2 
years 

7,669.23 

7 669.23 

7,363.29 
52,394.73 

59,758.02 
(52,394.73) 

7,363.29 

2-3 Years M ore than 3 Years 

-
95.94 16,056.78 
95.94 16,056.78 

2-3 Years M ore than 3 Years 

20.027.00 
- 20 027.00 

2-3 Years More than 3 Years 

1,790.30 
17,729.70 1,612.49 
19,520.00 1,612.49 

2-3 Years More than 3 Years 

20.027.00 
20 027.00 

5,294. 11 

5,294.11 

14,848.98 

14,848.98 

9,427.46 
90,929.50 

1,00,356.96 
(90,929.50) 

9,427.46 

Total 

7,363.29 
32.367.73 
39,731.02 

Total 

20.027.00 
20,027.00 

Total 

9.427.46 
70,902.50 
80,329.96 

Total 
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10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
a) Cash on hand 

b) Balances with banks 
- In current accounts 
- in Deposit accounts ( with original maturity of 3 months or less) @ 

Total 
@ marked as lien against bank guarantees 

11 Bank balances other than (ii) above 
Restricted Bank Balances@ 
(with original maturity of more than 3 months having remaining maturity of less 
than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date) 
Total 
@ marked as lien against bank guarantees 

12 Loans 
(Unsecured, considered good) 
To related parties: 
Loans receivable (refer note 33) 
Total 

As at 
31 March 2023 

As at 
31 March 2023 

126.32 

762.98 

889.30 

4,794.54 

4 794.54 

20,667.10 
20,667.10 

As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 
31 March 2022 

126.32 

1, 113.08 

5,067.32 

6,306.72 

3,661.90 

3,661.90 

20,667.10 
20,667.10 

Working capital loans have been given to the related parties that are receivable on demand with an interest rate of 6.5% p.a. Interest 
shall accrue on a monthly basis and shall be receivable as mutually agreed between the parties from time to time. 

13 Other Financial Assets - Current 
(Unsecured) 
Security deposits: 

Considered good 

Considered doubtful 

Less: Loss allowance for doubtful deposits 

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 
Interest accrued on intercompany loans (Refer note 33) 
Other Receivable 
Other Advances 

Total 

14 Other Current Assets 
Advances paid to suppliers 
Advances paid to suppliers - Credit Impaired 
Less: Loss Allowance 

Unbilled revenue 
Prepaid expenses 
Balances due from government authorities 

25.00 19,789.96 

9,209.85 8,679.76 
9,234.85 28,469.72 

(9,209.85) (8,679.76~ 
25.00 19,789.96 

4,540.80 2,643.48 
2,900.30 1,247.00 

220.36 
102.16 191.99 

7 568.26 24,092.79 

1,327.25 1,732.08 
310.63 

(310.63) 

1,218.20 406.07 
253.60 187.89 

0.00 23,644.79 

2 799.05 25,970.83 

~ ~ 
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IS Share Capital 

Authorised 
9,000,000 (Previous year: 9,000,000) equity Shares of~ I0 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 
7,215,250 (Previous year: 7,215,250) equity Shares on 10 each 

a.Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

31 March 2023 
Number Amount 

Equity Shares 
At the commencement of the year 72, 15,250 72,152.50 

Shares issued during the year 

At the end of the year 72,15,250 72,152.50 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

As at 
31 March 2023 

90,000.00 

72, 1S2.S0 

As at 
31 March 2022 

90,000.00 

72, 152.50 

31 March 2022 
Number Amount 

72,IS,2S0 72, 1S2.S0 

72,15,250 72,152.50 

Equity Shares - The company has a single class of equity shares . Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company's 
residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not show of 
hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. 
On winding up of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of all preferential 
amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held. 

b. Shares held by holding company and I or their subsidiaries I associates 

31 March 2023 
Number Amount 

Equity shares on 10 each fully paid up held by : 

lshaan Solar Power Private Limited (Holding Company) 72, 15,249 72, 1S2.49 

Anil Jain• 0.01 

72,15,250 72,152.50 

• Nominee shareholder holding one share on behalf of lshaan Solar Power Pvt Ltd (Holding Company) 

c. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares ofa class of shares 

Equity shares on 10 each fully paid held by 
lshaan Solar Power Private Limited (Holding Company) 

d.Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

31 March 2023 
Number 

72, 15,249 

72,15,249 

(% of total 
shares in the 

class) 

99.99% 

99.99% 

31 March 2022 
Number Amount 

72,1S,249 72, 152.49 

1 0.01 

72,15,250 72,152.50 

31 March 2022 
Number 

72,IS,249 

72,15,249 

(% of total 
shares in the 

class) 

99.99% 

99.99% 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Promoter Name 

lshaan Solar Power Pvt Ltd 
Anil Jain* 

No of shares 

72, 1S,249 

I 
72,15,250 

% of total 
shares 

99.99% 

0.01% 

100% 

• Nominee shareholder holding one share on behalf of lshaan Solar Power Pvt Ltd (Holding Company) 

No of shares 

72, 15,249 

72 15,250 

% of tota l 
shares 

99.99% 

0.01% 

100% 

% of changes 
during the year 

0% 
0% 

0% 
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16 Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

A Retained Earnings 
Opening balance 
Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Closing Balance 

B Items of Other Comprehensive Income 
Opening balance 
Add: Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations, net 
Closing Balance 

Total (A+B) 

Notes to Reserves 

As at 
31 March 2023 

(2,63,736.12) 
569.84 

(2,83,862.74) 
20,126.62 

(2,63, 736.12) 

469.44 
100.39 
569.83 

(22632166.29} 

As at 
31 March 2022 

(2,83,862.74) 
469.45 

(2,42,4 72.74) 
(41,390.00) 

(2,83,862. 7 4) 

712.37 
(242.93) 
469.44 

(22832393.30} 

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings represents undistributed accumulated profit and loss of the Company till date. The reserve would 
be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Comapnies Act, 2013 . 

Capital Management 
The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholders' confidence and to sustain future development of 
the business. However the net worth of the company has eroded completely as at 31 March 2023 due to the losses incurred in the recent 
past. Refer note 39 which discloses issues surrounding going concern and the Company's plans to tum around. Hence the mix of capital, at 
present, is not optimal and the Company is managing its operations with financial support in the form of short term loans received from 
affiliate companies. 

17 Long Term Borrowings 
Secured loan from Yes Bank ( Refer note below ) 
Total 

509.68 
509.68 

The above loan from Yes Bank has been availed against purchase of vehicle which has been hypothecated. The said loan carries an interest 
of8.84% repayable in 5 years on EMI basis. The Company has not defaulted on any of the repayment obligations in respect of this loan. 

18 Provisions 
Employee benefit obligations (Refer Note 34) 

Provision for Gratuity 

Short Term 

Long Term 

Provision for Compensated absences 
Short Term 
Long Term 

Provision for Warranty ( Refer note below ) 
Long Term 

Total 

9.88 
709.13 

3.16 
189.94 

12,002.29 

12,914.40 

5.61 
652.46 

3.96 
248.57 

30,837.99 
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Provision for Warranty 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Provision during the year 
Less: Provision utilised during the year 
Less: Provision reversed during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

19 Other Non-Current Liabilities 
Billing in excess of Revenue 

Total 

20 Borrowings-Short Term 
Secured 
From Related Parties (refer Note 33) # 

Unsecured 
From Related Parties (refer Note 33) # 
Current maturity of long term borrowings 

Total 

30,838 .00 

(2,826.45) 
(16,009.26) 
12,002.29 

As at 
31 March 2023 

5,754.93 

5 754.93 

663 .27 

1,32,467.37 

12332130.64 

36,045.34 
130.50 

(5,337.84) 

30,838.00 

As at 
31 March 2022 

11 ,438.28 

112438.28 

812.12 

1,56,234.13 
502.86 

12572549.ll 

# Working capital loans have been obtained from related parties that are repayable on demand with an interest rate ranging between 6.5% -
12.5% p.a. interest shall accrue on a monthly basis and shall be payable as mutually agreed between the parties from time to time. 
# Also includes loan from SILRES Energy Solutions Private Limited which is secured by way of first charge on all current assets. 

21 Trade Payables 

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer Note 2 la) 

Others 

Total 

Aging of trade payables (31/03/2023): 

Undisputed trade payables Uubilled Less than l 
Year 

Micro enterprises and 
- -small enterprises 

Others 15 ,630.60 21.40 
Total 15,630.60 21.40 

Aging of trade payables (31/03/2022): 

Undisputed trade 1iayables Unbilled 
Less than 1 
Year 

Micro enterprises and 
- 1,351.65 

small enterprises 

Others 35,768.41 180.0 1 
Total 35.768.41 1.531.66 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

- 107.77 

16.29 22.25 
16.29 130.02 

1-2 years 2-3 yea rs 

7,746.69 39,656.22 

1,054.89 19.02 
8.801.58 39,675.24 

25,170.94 

16,260.40 

41A3t.34 

More than 3 years 

25 ,063.17 

569.86 
25,633.03 

l\,iore thau 3 years 

-

410.67 
410.67 

Total 

Total 

48,754.56 

37,433.00 

862187.56 

25,170.94 

16,260.40 
41,431 .34 

48,754.56 

37,433.00 
86.187.56 
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21a Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identified certain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the 
definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act"). 
Accordingly the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 st March 2021 and 31 st March 2020 have been 
made in the financial statements based on information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 
accounting year 
(ii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day 
(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year 
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year 

(v) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 

22 Other Financial Liabilities 

lnterest accrued and due on loans ( refer Note 33) 
Total 

23 Other Current Liabilities 
Statutory dues payable 

Billing in excess of Revenue 
Dues to employees 
Other dues 
Total 

<This space has intentionally been left blank> 

As at 
31 March 2023 

17,339.16 

39.06 

7,831.78 

As at 
31 March 2023 

75,561.88 

75,561.88 

42.60 

5,341.83 

121.42 
239.42 

5 745.27 

As at 
31 March 2022 

41,096.75 

173.97 

7,657.81 

As at 
31 March 2022 

65,418.58 

65,418.58 

47.94 

5,571.10 

113.51 
63.03 

52795.58 

~ ~ 
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24 Revenue from operations 
Revenue from sale and installation of solar water pumps 
Operation & Maintenance 

Total 

25 Other Income 
Interest income on fixed deposits 
Interest income on intercompany loans 
Liabilities/Provisions no longer required written back 
Gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 
Others 
Total 

26 Consumption of material, erection and engineering expenses 
Purchases 

(Increase)/decrease in inventory 
Erection , installation, testing and certification charges 
Total 

27 Employee Benefit Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 34) 
Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

28 Finance costs 
Interest expense 
Total 

29 Other expenses 
Rent 
Power and fuel charges 
Rates and Taxes 
Legal and Professional Charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Royalty & Fees for technical services 

Payment to auditors (refer note (b) below) 
Insurance 

Provision for doubtful debts (refer note 37) 

Provision for GST Input Tax Credit 

Provision for Doubtful Assets 

Provision for warranty 
Obsolete inventory written off (refer note (a) below) 
Advances to suppliers written off 
Trade receivables written off 
Travelling and conveyance 
Commission expenses 
Security charges 
Communication expenses 
Bank charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Total 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

346.51 
6,378.32 

6,724.83 

2,261 .22 
1,653.31 

69,560.58 
35.96 

5 263 .79 
78,774.86 

917.29 
175.02 

1,092.31 

4,323 .23 
295 .37 

13 .22 
4,631.82 

10,214.62 

10,214.62 

495 .30 
1.47 

4,051.09 
870.03 

11.54 
50.00 

399.58 

30.22 

19,994.1 7 

1,406.50 

8,360.89 

13,347.1 7 
556.98 

5.00 

215 . 12 
40.51 

165.98 

For the year 

31 March 2022 

38,025 .72 
21 ,434.12 

59,459.84 

2,288.04 
1, 173.03 

16,924.31 

153.35 
20,538.73 

14,699.31 

21 ,821.92 
6 143.35 

42,664.58 

4,319.82 
469.47 

38.50 
4,827.79 

11 ,852.31 

11,852.31 

1, 119.08 
5.40 

779.77 
2,284.19 

26.24 

200.00 
583.44 

52,588.14 

9,719.18 

130.50 
2, 132.60 

8.78 

2,024.36 

444.21 
154.34 
39.06 

396.92 
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(a) Note: Obsolete Inventory written off 
Total obsolete inventory written off 
Less: Provision for obsolete inventory written back 
Net amount written off 

(b) Payment to Auditors (exclusive of taxes) 
Audit fee 
Total 

30 Tax Expense 

Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

8,360.89 

8,360.89 

200.00 
200.00 

For the year ended 
31-Mar-22 

11,991.00 
(9,858.40) 
2,132.60 

200.00 
200.00 

The major components of income tax expense and reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 
27.82% and the reported tax expense in the statement of profit or loss are disclosed in the note below. 

30A Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate 

Accounting profit before income tax 
At country' s statutory income tax rate of26% (31 March 2022: 26%) 
Valuation allowance on deferred tax asset on business loss incurred 
Impact on current tax relating to earlier years arising due to closure of assessments 
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

30B Details of Tax related Assets and Liabilities are : 

Taxes receivable 
Provision for taxation 
Total 

31 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a) Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of EPS 
b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 

c) Basic and diluted earnings per share 

20,126.62 
5,544.88 

(5,544.88) 

7,669.23 

7 669.23 

20,227.01 
7,215.25 

2.80 

(52,537.33) 
(14,474.03) 
14,474.03 

(11,147.33) 
(11,147.33) 

5,294.11 

5,294.11 

(41,632.93) 
7,215.25 

(577~ 
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32 Contin~ent Liabilities 

(a) Contingent liabi li ties - in respect of lncome Tax 
For Assessment year 2015-16 

(b) Bank guarantees outstanding 

33 Related Pa rty Transactions 
A. List of Related Parties 

Na me of the related party and nature of relationship 

Nature of Rela tionshio Name of the Related Partv• 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

10,782.20 
6,490.34 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

9,132.61 
29,257.34 

Ultimate Holding Comoany Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd (formerly known as Sunedison Infrastructure Limited) 
Holding Comoany lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiaries SE! Solartech orivate Limited 

SIL Rooftoo Solar Power Private Limited 
Megarnic Electronics Private Limited 
SILRES Enerev Solutions Private Limited (Uoto 16th Aueust 2021) 
Enrecover Enemv Recoverv Solutions Private Limited 

Entities in which shareholders exert Refex Research Private Limited 
significant influence 

SuoEdison Enemv India Private Limited 
Awan Pashuoathv Caoital Advisors Private Limited 
Refex Industries Limited 
Refex Energy Limited 
Refex Solar Power Private Limited 

Key Managerial Personnel Chandrasekaran Viswanatban (uoto l0/ 10/2022) 
Key Manal!erial Personnel Thirunavukkarasu Dakshinamoorthy 
Kev Manaeerial Personnel Venkatesan Krishnan 

• as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors 

B. Transa ctions with Related Parties 

Na ture of the Transaction Na me of Related Pa rty For the yea r ended For the yea r ended 
Ma rch 31 2023 Ma rch 31 2022 

Revenue from operations lsbaan Solar Power Private Limited 4, [66.52 

Sale of Material SLLRES Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd 10.00 

Reimbursement of materials Refex Renewables & lnfrastructure Ltd 694.29 
Reimbursement of Exoenses Awan Pashuoathv Caoital Advisors Private Limited 220.36 123.82 

Purchase of Goods lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 24.52 

Finance Cost lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 531.99 2 204.05 
Finance Cost SLLRES Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd I 136.56 
Finance Cost SuoEdison Energy lndia Private Ltd 9 526.9 1 8 384.64 

Interest Income Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd 1.653 .37 l 173 03 

Remote monitoring services Me!!arnic Electronics P Ltd 303.15 

Loans Given Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd 17 709.9 1 

Loans Given received back Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd 2 846.93 

Short Term Loans Borrowed lsbaan Solar Power Private Limited 5,577.28 29,203 .28 

Short Term Loans Borrowed SILRES Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd 11 ,617 .60 

Short Term Loans Borrowed SuoEdison Energy India Private Ltd 652 .96 

Loan taken repaid lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 29,229 .03 15,632.37 

Loan taken repaid SILRES Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd 44,685 .15 

Loan taken repaid SuoEdison Energy India Private Ltd 5,060.96 
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33 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

C B I a a nee as at vea r end 

Na ture of the Tra nsaction Name of Related Party 

Trade Receivables SLLRES Enemv Solutions Pvt Ltd 

Short Term Borrowings Ishaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Short Term Borrowings SLLRES Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd 
Short Term Borrowings SunEdison Energy India Private Ltd 

Trade Pavables A vvao Renewable Solar Pvt Ltd 
Trade Payables lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Trade Pavables Megamic Electronics Private Limited 

Interest oavable on borrowings Ishaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Interest oayable on borrowings SE! Solartech Private Limited 
Interest oavable on borrowioes Suoedisoo Research Private limited 
Interest oavable on borrowings SunEdison Energy India Private Ltd 
Interest oavable on borrowings Refex Solar Power Private Limited 
Interest oavable on borrowings SlLRES Enemv Solutions Pvt Ltd 

Loans receivable Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd 

Interest receivable Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Ltd 
Interest receivable Refex Energy Limited 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

10.50 

5,441.90 29 208.65 
812.12 

1,27,025.48 1 27 025.48 

1 250.15 
24 989.26 39 639.98 

181.70 181.70 

35 709.81 35 177.82 
3 353.45 3 353.45 

491.02 49 1.02 
25 996.03 16466.16 

8.68 8.68 
2 044.36 

20 667.11 20,667.11 

2 080.54 427.17 
819.83 819.83 
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34 Employee Benefits: 

Defined Contribution Plans: 
The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying 
employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The 
Company recognised Rs. 259.63 thousand (Year ended 31 March 2022: Rs. 27l.85 thousand) towards Provident Fund contributions and Rs. 
34.07 thousand (Year ended 31 March 2022: Rs. 45.69 thousand) towards Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Defined Benefit Plans: 

Compensated Absences Plan Gratuity 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Ma rch 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 

Components of Employer's Expense: 
Current Service Cost (12 .95) 117.86 169.34 133 .9 1 
lnterest Cost 48.00 18.02 
Tota l expense recognised in the Statement (12.95) 117.86 217.34 151.94 
of Profit and Loss 

Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) durin2 the vear: 
Comoensated Absences Plan Gratuitv 

31 March 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 31 Ma rch 2023 31 March 2022 
Present value at the beginning of year 252.53 134.67 658.07 263 .21 
Interest Cost 48.00 18.02 
Service Cost (12 95) 117.86 169.34 133.9 1 

Benefits Paid (46.47) - (56 01) 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (100.39) 242.93 

Present va lue at the end ofvear 193.11 252.53 719.01 658.07 

Liability recognised in the balance sheet 193.11 252.53 719.01 658.07 

Comoensated Absences Plan Gratuitv 
31 Ma rch 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 31 Ma rch 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 

Current Portion 3.16 3.96 9.88 5.61 
Non-Current Portion 189.94 248.57 709.13 652.46 

193.11 252.53 719.01 658.07 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Discount Rate 7.45% 7.30% 7.45% 7.30% 
Expected rate of return on assets NA NA NA NA 
Expected rate of salary Increase IO¾pa lO¾pa lO¾pa IO¾ pa 

Attrition Rate 
Upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
31 -44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% l.00% 

Mortality (% oflALM 12-14) 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Sensitivity Analysis 

Gratuity: 
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 Ma rch 2022 

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 
Discount Rate(-/+ I%) 873 .67 595.99 811.22 538.17 
(% change compared to actual) 21.50% -1 7% 23 .30% -18.20% 

Salary growth rate(-/+ I%) 597.55 868.15 539.83 805.48 
(% change compared to actual) -16.90% 20.70% -18.00% 22.40% 

Attrition rate(-/+ 50%) 750.78 691.25 696.89 624.50 
(% change compared to actual) 4.40% -3 .90% 5.90% -5 .10% 

Mortality rate (-/+10%) 719.80 781.22 658.88 657.26 
(% change compared to actual) 0.10% -0.10% 0.10% -0.10% 
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Leave encashment 
As at 31 Ma rch 2023 

Discount Rate (-/+ 1 %) 
(% change compared to actual) 

Salary growth rate (-/+ I%) 
(% change compared to actual) 

Attrition rate(-/+ 50%) 
(% change compared to actual) 

Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 
(% change compared to actual) 

~

·",-
.. \ .-
:,. 

q 
~\~ 

Decrease Increase 
232.21 161.72 
20.30% -16.30% 

162.12 230.82 
-16.00% 19.50% 

200.6 1 186.58 
3.90% -3.40% 

193.3 1 192.20 
0.10% -0.10% 

As at 31 Ma rch 2022 
Decrease Increase 

309.64 207.65 
22.60% -1 7.80% 

208.27 307.50 
-17.50% 21.80% 

265.77 241.21 
5.20% -4.50% 

252.84 252.22 
0.10% -0.10% 
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35 Segment Reporting 

lnd AS 108 establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclousre about product and services, geographical areas 
and major customers. Based on 'management approach' as defined in lnd AS I 08, for the year ended March 2023 & 2022, the Board of Directors 
evaluate the company performance by its only business segment comprising of supply, installation, commissioning and maintenance of solar water pumps 
and hence information for such segment has been presented as part of the Balance Sheet and Statement of profit and loss . 

Geographical Segments - The Company has only one geographical segment viz., lndia. 

Details of income from major customers 

Name of Customer 
Year ended 31 Year ended 31 

March 2023 March 2022 
Alectrona Energy Private Limited 0 86% 
Grassroot Tradin11: Network for Women 50% 8% 
Rich Phvtocare Pvt Ltd 21% 3% 
lshaan Solar Power Pvt Ltd [1 % 1% 

<This space has been intentionally left blank> ~ v 
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36 Fai r Value Meuurements 

Financial instruments by ca tegory 
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Fair va lue hierarchy 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level I Level II Level Ill 

Financial Assets 
Trade Receivables• 
Cash and Cash Equivalents# 
Other Bank Balances # 
Loans 
Other Financial Assets• 
Total AHets 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade Payables• 
Borrowings 
Other Financial Liabilities• 
Total Liabilities 

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 

cost 

7,363.29 
889.30 

4,794 .54 
20,667. 11 
39,279.43 
72,993.67 

4 1,431.36 
l ,33 ,130.65 

75 ,56 l.89 
2,50,123,90 

Fai r value hierarchy 
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Level l Level II Level Ill 

Financial Assets 
Trade Receivables• 
Cash and Cash Equivalents# 
Other Bank Balances # 
Loans 
Other Financial Assets• 
Total AHet5 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade Payables• 
Borrowings 
Other Financial Liabilities• 
Total Liabilities 

cost 

9,427.46 
6,306.72 
3,66 1.90 

20,667. l l 
59,413 .69 
99 476.88 

l,58,058.79 
65,4 18.57 

3,09,664.92 
5,33,142.28 

•Toe canying value of these accounts are considered to be the same as their fair value, due to their short tenn nature . 
fl These accounts are considered to be highly Liquid and the carrying amount of these are cons idered to be the same as their fair value. 

37 Financial Risk Management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company 's primary foc us is to 
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary risks to the Company 
are credit and liquidity risk. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies fo r managing each of these ri sks, which are summarised below : 

(i) Credit Risk 
Credit ri.sk management 

Credit risk is the ri sk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrwnent fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises 
principally from the company ' s receivables from customers and invesonent securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as 
weU as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable . The maximum exposure to credit ri sk is equal to the canying value of the 
financial assets. 'Ibe objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The company assesses the credit quality of the 
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. 

a)Provision for expected credit Ion 
Based on the average of historical trend of loss allowance from the previous years , the Company makes a provision for expected credit loss on the existing 
trade receivable balance. Over and above this, specific provision is made against receivable which are agred more than 365 days and where the management 
beleives that there is a risk of non collec tion. 

Year ended March 31, 2023 
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach : 

Aging in days 
Gross canying amount 
Provision for expec ted credit loss 
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 

Vear ended March 31, 2022 
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simpl ified ap proach : 

Aging in dayi 
Gross canying amount 
Provision for expected credit loss 
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 

Upto 1 year 
5.00 

5.00 

Upto 1 year 
19,371.85 

(19,095.28) 
276.57 

More tha n a year 
59,753 .02 

(52,394.73) 
7,358.29 

Mo re tha n a year 
80,985. 12 

(71 ,834.22) 
9,150.90 

Tota l 
59,758.02 

(52,394.73) 
7,363.29 

Total 
l,00,356.97 
(90,929.50) 

9,427.47 
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37 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 

(ii) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due . The company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, 
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due . The Company depends on its related parties for short term funds to 
maintain liquidity for fulfilling its working capital requirements. Also refer Note 39 on going concern. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 . 

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 
Less than one 1-2 years 2 years and Total 

year above 
Trade Payables 41 ,431.36 41,43 1.36 
Borrowings 1,33,130.65 1,33,130.65 
Other Financial Liabilities 75,561.88 75,561 .88 

Total 2,50,123.89 - 2,50, 123.89 

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 
Less than one 1-2 years 2 years and Total 

vear above 
Trade Payables 86,187.55 86, 187.55 

Borrowings 1,57,54 9.11 509.68 1,58,058 . 79 
Other Financial Liabilities 65,4 18.57 65,418 .57 

Total 3,09, 155.23 509.68 3,09,664.91 

(iii) Foreign Currency Risk 
The Company's operations are largely within India and hence the exposure to foreign currency risk is very minimal . 

The fo Uowing table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Particulars Fo reign Currency In Foreig~I AmountlNR In Foreig~I Amount INR 
Currency Currency 

Cash Balance Chinese Yuan 10.58 I 126.32 10.58 I 11 8.02 

38 Disclosure of information in terms of section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 : 

Name of Entity Nature of Relationship Purpose 31 March 31 March 
2023 2022 

Refex Renewables Ultimate Holding Refer Note 33 Working capital 20,667.11 20,667 .11 
& Infrastructure Ltd Company 
(formerly known as 
Sunedison 
Infrastructure 
Limited) 

39 Going Concern Assumption 
The Company has incurred accumulated losses because of which the net worth has been compeletely eroded as at the balance sheet date thereby raising substantial 
doubt about the Company's ability to continue in operation for the fore seeable future . Consequently, these financial statements have not been prepared on a going 
concern basis. Consequently, the recorded amounts of assets have been adjusted to reflect the values they are expected to realise and the liabilities have been 
remeasured at the values they are expected to settle . 

40 Subsequent Events 

There are no events that occured after the reporting date which would required adjustment in this financial statement. 
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41 Financial ratios 

Ratios Determinant 
22-23 

Amount(Rs) 
Current Asset 44,08155 

Current ratio 
Current Liability 2,55,869.17 

Total Liabilities 1,38,885 .57 

Debt-Equity ratio Shareholders Equity (1,9 1,013 .78) 

EBITDA 30,570 .78 

Debt service 
coverage ratio Principal + Interest 1,49,100.20 

Return on equity 
Net Profit 20,227.01 

ratio Shareholders Equity (1,91 ,013 .78) 

lnveotory turnover Net Sales 7,521 .59 

ratio Average Inventory 7,424.49 

Net Credit Sales 7,521.59 
Trade receivables 
turnover ratio Average Trade 8,395 .38 

Receivables 
Net Credit Purchase 1,092.31 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio Average Trade Payable 63,809.46 

Turnover 7,521 .59 
Net capital turnover 
ratio Working Capital (2, 11 ,787.62) 

Net Profit 20,227 .01 
Net profit ratio 

Turnover 7,521.59 

EBIT 30,34 1.24 

Return on capital 
employed Capital Employed (1,9 1,013 .78) 

Net Income 20,227 .01 

Return on 
investment Capital Employed (1,91 ,013 .78) 

42 A dditional rei!:ulatorv information reouired bv Schedule Ill 
Ii\ Details of Benami Prooertv held 

Ratio 

0.17 

-0.73 

0.21 

0. 11 

1.01 

0.90 

0.02 

-0.04 

2.69 

-15.88% 

-10.59% 

21-22 

Amount(Rs) 
1,04,975 .78 

3, 14,950.82 

1,69,497 .07 

(2, 11 ,240 .79) 

(40,130.03) 

1,81 ,349 .38 

(41,632 .93) 

(2, 11 ,240 .79) 

59,459.84 

26,826.24 

59,459 .84 

48,478.35 

42,664 .59 

1,02,158.07 

59,459.84 

(2,09,975 .04) 

(41 ,632 .93) 

59,459.84 

(40,685 .02) 

(2,11,240 .79) 

(41,632 .93) 

(2, 11 ,240 .79) 

Reason (Where variance is 
Variance 

Ratio greater than 25%) 

Decrease was primarily due to 

0.33 -48 .3 1% 
significant rise in the credit risk of 
deposits and advances and the loss 
allowance thereof. 

-0.80 -9.38% 

Ratio has improved on account of 

-0.22 -192 .66% 
repayment of borrowings and 
improved profitability during the 
year 

Profit increased primarily on 
-0.20 -153 .73% account of write back of old 

liabilities 

2.22 -54 .29% 
Ratio decreased due to provisioning 
of old inventory 

Ratio has reduced on account of 

1.23 -26 .95% increase in the collection cycle of 
the Company 

0.42 -95 .90% 
Ratio has reduced due to fall in the 

purchases made during the year 

-0.28 -87.46% 
Decrease was primarily on account 
of decrease in turnover for the year. 

Ratio has improved on account of 
-0.70 -484 .07% improved profitability during the 

lvear 
Adverse ratio due to losses 

incurred in the previous years. 
19.26% -182.47% However, current year's position has 

improved on account of profits of 
the vear 

Adverse ratio due to losses 
incurred in the previous years. 

19.71% -153 .73% However, current year's position has 
improved on account of profits of 
the year 

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets 

The Company does not have any outstanding borrowings from banks or financial institutions at the end of the financial year. 

(iii) WiUful defaulter 

None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financia l institution or government or any government authority . 
(iv) Relationship with struck off companies 

The Company bas not entered into any transactions with companies which are struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act 1956 during the financial year ended on 31 March 2023 . 

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 . 
(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year. 
(vii) Utilisation of borrowed fund s and share premium 
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested fund s to any other persun(s) ur entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the b'l'Oup (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 
The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that tlte group shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lead or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiarie s 
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(viii) Undisclosed Income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the locome Tax Act, 
(ix) Details or crypto currency or virtual currency 
The group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 
(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property 
The Comapny has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year. 

43 During the previous year, the directors had resolved to approve a proposal to merge the Company with lshaan Solar Power Private Limited (the Holding company) 
subject however, to the receipt of the final order from Securities Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') by Refex Renewables and Infrastructure Limited (formerly 
SuoEdison Infrastructure Limited) (the Ultimate Holding company) in light of the interim order that was issued by SEBI on I 5th February, 2021 placing a 
restriction on Ref ex Renewables and Infrastructure Limited and its subsidiaries from carrying out any form of restructuring and the approval of the members of the 
Company in its General Meeting. During the current year, the final order was issued by SEBI on 28th July 2022 . Consequently, the Company has withdrawn from 
itself the proposal and the merger has been cancelled. 

44 Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
SEI Tejas Private Limited 

~.-~~ .. ~ 
Director 
DIN: 07345667 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 

Venk.atesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN: 08245718 
Place : Chennai 
Date : 23 May 2023 


